ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 18, 2014
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 199
"An Act relating to Departnent of Public Safety regulations
allowing village public safety officers to carry firearns."

- MOVED HB 199 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 212

"An Act relating to an exenption from driver |icensing
requi renents for spouses of mnenbers of the armed forces of the
United States.”

- MOVED HB 212 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 273

"An Act extending the termnation date of the Council on
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 273 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 199

SHORT TITLE: VPSO FI REARVS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

04/ 04/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 18, 2014



04/ 04/ 13
01/ 28/ 14
01/ 28/ 14
01/ 28/ 14
02/ 04/ 14
02/ 04/ 14
02/ 04/ 14
02/ 05/ 14
02/ 05/ 14

02/ 05/ 14
02/ 11/ 14
02/ 11/ 14
02/ 11/ 14
02/ 13/ 14
02/ 13/ 14
02/ 13/ 14
02/ 18/ 14

BILL: HB 212

NN AN AN NN AN NN

NN AN AN AN NN

TITITITITITITLE 22T

CRA, STA

CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( CRA)

CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124
Moved Qut of Committee

M NUTE( CRA)

CRA RPT 5DP 1NR
DP: RElI NBOLD
NAGEAK

NR: OLSON

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

FOSTER, HERRON

SHORT TITLE: DRI VER S LI CENSI NG EXEMPTI O\ M LI TARY

SPONSOR( s)

01/ 21/ 14
01/ 21/ 14
01/ 21/ 14
02/ 04/ 14
02/ 04/ 14
02/ 04/ 14
02/ 11/ 14
02/ 11/ 14
02/ 11/ 14
02/ 12/ 14
02/ 12/ 14
02/ 12/ 14
02/ 13/ 14
02/ 13/ 14
02/ 18/ 14

BILL: HB 273

IIITITITITITITIIIZ

REPRESENTATI VE(s) | SAACSON, HUGHES, LEDOUX

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
MV, STA

M.V AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( MLV)

M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Moved Qut of Committee

M NUTE( MLV)

M.V RPT 4DP 1AM

DP: H GE@ NS, HUGHES, FOSTER, LEDOUX
AM  GRUENBERG

M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: EXTENDI NG COUNCI L ON DOVESTI C VI OLENCE

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 24/ 14
01/ 24/ 14
02/ 13/ 14
02/ 13/ 14

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

(
(
(
(

NS E N e

REPRESENTATI VE(s) HOLMES

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN
STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

<Bi || Hearing Rescheduled to 02/18/14>

-2- February 18, 2014

LEDQUX,



02/ 18/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prine sponsor, presented HB 199.

JCE MASTERS
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 199.

JAKE METCALFE, Executive Director

Public Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on (PSEA) Local 803

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 199.

MARK SPRI NGER
Bet hel , Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 199.

STEVEN ARLOW Captain

Al aska State Troopers

VPSO Support

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 199.

NATHAN SOLORI O, Intern

Represent ati ve Doug | saacson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
212, on behal f of Representative |saacson, joint prime sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed proposed Anendnent 1 during the
heari ng on HB 212.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 212.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 18, 2014



JOVD STEWART, Project Mnager

Fai r banks Econom c¢ Devel opnent Corporation (FEDC)
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 212.

REPRESENTATI VE LI NDSEY HOLMES

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prinme sponsor, presented HB 273.

KRI'S CURTIS, Legislative Auditor

Legi slative Audit Division

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an audit report and answered
gquestions during the hearing on HB 273.

LAUREE MORTQON, Executive Director

Council on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA)

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
heari ng on HB 273.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:04: 09 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 8:04 a.m Representatives Keller, Gattis

| saacson, Hughes, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representative Kreiss-Tonkins arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 199- VPSO FI REARVS

8:04: 27 AM
CHAIR LYNN announced the first order of business was HOUSE BI LL
NO. 199, "An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety
regulations allowing village public safety officers to carry
firearms."

8: 05: 26 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 18, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGMVON, Al aska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, presented HB 199. He recollected that at the prior
hearing on HB 199, on 2/13/14, Representative Hughes had asked a
coupl e questions.

8:07:01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES expl ai ned that her questions had been in
regard to the screening and training of VPSGCs, and she said she
would like the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) to address
t hem

CHAI R LYNN i ndi cated he woul d hear other testinony first.
8: 08: 07 AM

JOE MASTERS stated that although he had worked in Ilaw
enforcenent for over 30 years - as a Village Public Safety
Oficer (VPSO in Unal akleet, a rural police officer, an Al aska
State Trooper, and five years as conm ssioner of DPS - he was
testifying on his own behalf. He said he would discuss the
uni que nature of VPSGs and their duties and the issue of their
safety. He said VPSGs are an inportant and integral part of the
safety of rural villagers. He said many conmunities with VPSCs
have no other source of |aw enforcenent. COccasionally there are
village police officers (VPGs), but often they are not arned
ei t her. He said over the past few years there has been an
increase in assaults on police officers in Al aska. Si nce 2002,
the rate of injury assaults on Al aska police officers increased
by 66 percent, while the rate of non-injury assaults increased

by 137 percent. He said there have been seven incidents over
the past several years where VPSOs have been threatened by
subjects using fire arns. He said the aforenentioned incident

that ended M. Mudole's life was wdely publicized, but just
prior to that there was a known incident in Southwest Al aska,
outside of Bethel, where a VPSO was chased by a subject with a
shotgun and received pellets to the face. He said there was
also a VPSO in a community outside of Kotzebue, who was backed
down the street by a subject, who was tackled by another
byst ander and did not shoot at the VPSO. He said there are many
simlar exanples. He stated that VPSCs have been |aw
enforcement officer for over 30 years in rural Al aska.

8:12:10 AM

MR. MASTERS said the idea of a VPSO being arnmed is not a new
concept; in the early '80s, a VPSO could be arned if their

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 18, 2014



comunities accepted additional liability insurance. He said he
does not recall what the training requirenent was.

8:12:45 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked M. Masters if there have been past incidents
where arnmed VPSGCs m sused their weapons.

MR. MASTERS answered that he does not recall any incidents
during the time he served as a rural officer, but cannot say for
certain. M. Msters relayed that in the early '90s there was a
transition course, which helped VPSGCs fill traditional police
positions. He said he was a trainer in Sitka at the time and
al so instructed courses in the use of firearns. He said during
that tinme there were no nore problens as a result of the
training or relating to decisions of when the use of deadly
force was acceptable conpared to any other I|aw enforcenent

academn es. He acknow edged that there are people concerned
about training and background [checks] for VPSGCs, which are
i ssues he said need to be addressed. Not wi t hst andi ng that, he

opined that it is time to offer the necessary tools to VPSGCs
that are trained properly so that they can defend thenselves.
He said under current statute, VPSOs are allowed to carry a
firearm but only under extrene exigent circunstances; however,
those circunstances can happen so quickly that a VPSO may not
have tine to go get a firearm M. Masters enphasized his
strong support of HB 199. He revealed that when he was
comm ssioner, he had begun a regulation process to allow VPSGs
to be arned and address the training aspect, as well, because he
was sure that DPS "held the responsibility and the authority to
dictate what l|evel of training and certification was required
prior to a VPSO being allowed to be arned.”

8:16: 30 AM

CHAIR LYNN expressed appreciation for M. Msters' testinony
because of his varied related job positions. He asked how the
training back at the tinme VPSGs were arned in the past conpares
to the training proposed under HB 199.

MR. MASTERS answered that the anobunt of training given in the
1980s to all types of law enforcenent officers was nuch |ess
than it is today. He posited that it is nore relevant what kind
of training will be given today, and he warned against putting
too much detail in VPSO training to the point that it would be
above and beyond that which a police officer does.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 18, 2014



8:19:13 AM

JAKE WMETCALFE, Executive Director, Public Safety Enployees
Association (PSEA) Local 803, said Local 803 serves state
troopers, airport police, court service officers, and nunicipa
police departnments in Ketchikan, Sitka, Juneau, Fairbanks,
Sol dot na, Unal aska, and Dillingham He said VPSCs are not
menbers of Local 803; however, the state troopers oversee them
and work with themon a daily basis. He related that from 1990-
[1994], he worked as an assistant district attorney, and from
1994-1997 he was a district attorney in Bethel, where he worked
in the capacity of prosecutor with VPSOCs enployed by the
Association of Village Council Presidents. He said the people
who worked in his office worked with VPSOs on a regular basis
He said he thinks not only does he know how inportant VPSGCs are
to villages, but he also has an understanding of their job
duti es. He said VPSGs are certified to be VPSGCs, not police
officers; law enforcenent is a linmted portion of what they do,
and it is done on a limted basis. He said VPSGs do not go
through the sanme amount of training as state troopers or
muni ci pal police officers go through, which he explained is one
of the concerns that PSEA Local 803 has wth the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

MR. METCALFE said police officers receive a great deal of
training before being authorized to work alone with a weapon,
and he offered his understanding that under HB 199 and the
attached fiscal note, that training has not been considered. He
sai d PSEA Local 803 thinks that the fiscal note is not accurate,
because there is training that should be required. He said a
police certificate requires 900 hours of training, while a VPSO
certificate, which does not require the basic |aw enforcenent

training, requires approximtely 600 hours. Further, when a
police officer finishes training, he/she goes out in the field
with an experienced police officer for up to six nonths. He

said if the same thing is anticipated under HB 199, then that
would require a state trooper to do the field training, which
woul d nean a consi derabl e anmount of increased funding.

8:23:18 AM

MR. METCALFE stated that Captain Steven Arlow has given a
presentation on the VPSO Program to a couple of legislative
commttees, and one statistic given is that there is about a 30-
percent turnover in the VPSO Programon a yearly basis. He said
that by his calculations, there is a conplete turnover about
every three years. He said he thinks that turnover is sonething

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 18, 2014



that should be considered as repetitive in terns of the cost to
the state. He urged the conmttee to get nore information about
the training that would be required and the true cost under HB
199 in arm ng VPSGCs.

8:24: 41 AM

CHAIR LYNN pondered whether the stress of working in renote
| ocations wthout proper defense is a factor in the high
turnover of VPSCs.

MR. METCALFE ventured there are a nunber of factors that go into
the turnover rate, including: the lack of a retirement program
insufficient pay, and working outside ones own conmmunity. He
said part of it could be the stress of being unarned; however,
much of what a VPSO does is not related to | aw enforcenent. For
exanple, VPSCs are involved in search and rescue, fire, and
educating students in schools. He said the law enforcenent
aspect involves helping state troopers wth m sdeneanor cases

very seldom are they involved in felony cases other than to help
a trooper who is going into a conmunity to investigate a felony.
He reiterated that there are many factors that go into the
turnover of VPSCs.

8:26:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER chal | enged M. Metcalfe's testinony that a
turnover rate of approximately 30 percent neans that there is a
conpl ete turnover about every three years, because "you may get
turnover rates up because of problenms in one area that can be
dealt wth."

8:27:33 AM

VR. METCALFE said he appreciates Representative Keller's
comment, because there are a nunber of ways to look at the
issue. He opined that 30 percent a year is an anount that needs
to be considered in the cost of training, because 30 percent in
any programis costly.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER clarified that his coment had not been
pointed to the 30 percent a year turnover, but rather to M.
Metcal fe's conclusion that that means the whole program turns
over every three years.

MR. METCALFE said 30 percent is huge amount that should be
considered in the cost of the proposed |egislation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 18, 2014



8:29: 09 AM

MARK SPRI NGER sai d al though he serves on the Bethel City Council
and is on the Al aska Muinicipal League (AM.) Board of Directors,
he is testifying on behalf of hinself. He said he has lived in
rural Al aska since 1976, in Hooper Bay, as a city admnistrator
who hired VPSGs. He opined that M. Metcalfe's characterization
of the job of a VPSO - as focused primarily on fire fighting,

search and rescue, and visiting school s - was a
m scharacterization of the work done by VPSGs. He said dispatch
cards will show that VPSOs enforce state |aws every day. They

involve thenselves in driving under the influence (DU) and
donmestic violence cases, conducting prelimnary investigations
of serious crimes, securing crime scenes until state troopers
arrive, and assisting troopers with felony investigations. He
related one reason that it is said VPSGs do not do felony work
is that often a district attorney will not take felony paperwork
froma VPSO even though a VPSO "may be, by dint of experience,
perfectly qualified to perform the initial part of a felony
i nvestigation.”

MR. SPRINGER stated his full support of HB 199 and urged the
commttee' s support. He concurred with the testinony of fornmer
VPSO and conmm ssioner of DPS, M. Msters. He said both M.
Masters and M. Metcalfe made an inportant point that VPSGs in
Al aska are not peace officers under state statute. He stated he
has al ways thought that they ought to be. He said they used to
be certified by the Alaska Police Standards Council (APSC), but
that ended nore than ten years ago. He opined that the APSC
should be the agency that sets the standards for training for
VPSCs to carry firearns. He said Al askans can be proud of how
the Alaska State Troopers' "consistent, judicious, and neasured
application of force, and particularly deadly force, as conpared
to a lot of other law enforcenent agencies in the United

States. " He indicated his <confidence in allowng the
conmi ssioner to set and enforce the standards for VPSGs to be
armed and be trained to the sanme degree as the troopers. He

described a situation where a trooper responds to a call where
there may be an inebriated person with a shotgun and the door
gets kicked in, and he said that is the type of situation he

wants to see VPSGs handle. He said there are a lot of
experienced VPSGCs in the state; many in his region have been
certified police officers. He said when a police officer

becones a VPSO, "the clock stops” on his "law enforcenent tine"
for the APSC. M. Springer concluded his testinony by relating

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 18, 2014



that he has had his life protected by a VPSO and by reiterating
hi s support of HB 199.

8:35:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON expressed appreciation for M.
Springer's testinony. He indicated that during its prior
hearing on HB 199, the commttee |earned that the requirenents
for the mninmum standards and training would be directed by the
APSC. He asked M. Springer to confirm that he supports that
portion of the proposed | egislation.

MR. SPRI NGER answer ed yes.
8: 36: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked the next testifier, Captain Steven
Arlow, to address the issues of training, screening, and the
ability of Native corporations that hire VPSGs to conduct "extra
background screening or anything like that."

8:37:57 AM

STEVEN ARLOW Captain, Al aska State Troopers, VPSO Support,
Department of Public Safety (DPS), said he has overseen the VPSO
Program for DPS for the last eight years and is famliar with
the issues that the program faces. He said he listened to the
previous testifiers and would like to outline the departnent's
current plan and address statenents that were made. He rel ayed
there are ten contracting entities in the VPSO Program that wll
be involved in all aspects of the departnent's decision-making
process. He said the departnent wants to hold VPSGs to the sane
firearnms training standard as that of Al aska State Troopers. He
said there has been discussion anong the various nonprofit
groups and contractors regarding the possibility of doing a
pol ygraph test and psychol ogical eval uation. He indicated a
cost of $400 related to eval uation. He said that is sonething
t he departnent would entertain doing.

MR. ARLOW regarding the question about turnover, said the
percentage is about 33 percent; however, he said it is not
accurate to say that the entire program is at 33 percent,
because it is nore of a region-specific turnover. There are
sonme stable regions that have very little turnover. He said the
VPSO Program was designed to conduct search and rescue and fire
safety efforts and take part in school resource activities, as
well as take part in law enforcenent; it was not intended to be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 18, 2014



predom nately |aw enforcenment focused, but has norphed into that
because of the large volunme of service calls in some areas. He
said that is where there is a high turnover rate. He said he
does not disagree that a high turnover rate is expensive for the
departnent; however, he said that percentage has been in the
program for several decades. He said the departnent has studied
the turnover and believes the cause is not pay or retirenent,
because each nonprofit provides a 401-K base - one of them in
the Public Enployee Retirement System (PERS) - and the current
pay for VPSGs is "fair and reasonable” and natches that of many

| aw enforcenent entities in the state. He related that there
are sonme VPSGCs who make $70,000 to $80,000 a year and a few,
with longevity, who are naking six figures. He said he thinks

the attrition is due to burnout and a region in the state that
is experiencing a high volunme of |aw enforcenment work. He said
half of the turnover rate is a result of VPSGs neking poor
choices on and off the job; they are being dismssed for failure
to performtheir duties.

8:43: 56 AM

CAPTAIN ARLOW stated that he does not disagree wth M.
Metcal fe's characterization of the fiscal note as inaccurate,
but suggested M. Metcalfe mght not understand the fiscal note
is a representation of what the departnent would like to do if
HB 199 passes. He explained that DPS is interested in starting
a pilot program where a few VPSGCs in a particular region would
be put through a gamut of training and eval uation, introducing
the VPSGs into a community, and neasuring the comunity
reaction. He said DPS anticipates that such a pilot program
would entail "less of a funding need right now" He said once
the departnment can verify that the programis well-received by a
community and that the VPSGs are using the firearms in the
manner in which they are trained, then it wll feel nore
confortable in opening up the program

8:45:21 AM

CAPTAIN ARLOWV said firearmtraining is as much about when not to
use one as when to use one. During field training, a "seasoned
person” would be paired with a training VPSO to determ ne the
j udgnent of the VPSO In regard to VPSGs not being nenbers of
DPS, but rather being affiliated with non-profit entities, he
said continuity 1is paranount. He said the departnent's
i nsurance policy can be anended with |anguage that would "help
in the relationship.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 18, 2014



8:47:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked if, under the pilot program VPSO
time would count toward recertification of a nunicipal or police
of fi cer whose certification had | apsed.

8:48: 37 AM

CAPTAI N ARLOW responded that he would like to see that happen,
but said there will be "a considerable anpunt of structuring of
t he Al aska Police Standards Council to get there."

8:49: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES t hanked Captain Arlow for addressing her
concerns regarding training. She recalled testinony indicating
a high turnover of VPSGs in regions of the state where the |arge
portion of the duties of the VPSGs is in |aw enforcenent, and
she asked Captain Arlow if he thinks the training program and
subsequent arm ng of those VPSOs would |ikely | ower the turnover
rate.

CAPTAIN ARLOW said 30 percent is a high turnover rate. He
expressed his hope that training VPSOs to be equipped wth
firearms would [ower that rate, but he said tine will tell. In
response to a followup question, he said he thinks that soneone
in a uniformcarrying a firearmincreases people's perception of

authority. He related that right now the nere presence of a
VPSO nakes people willing to report crime and over a period of
time, "we see that crinme stabilizes and we have |less reports of
paused service." He stated, "I think introduction to the
fire[arms] would certainly ... mrror that, as well."

8.52:42 AM

CHAIR LYNN opined that someone in uniform carrying a firearm
gi ves nore perception of authority than does an unarned officer.

8:53: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON expressed appreciation of all coments,
including those critical of bill. He talked about the
| ongstanding cooperative relationship between VPSGCs, t he
nonprofit agencies that hire them and DPS. He said VPSO
coordinators neet quarterly and, in addition to that, neet wth
t he departnent. He said there have been nunerous attenpts over

the years to focus on the strengths and weaknesses of the VPSO

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 18, 2014



Program nost recently, in 2008, there was a Senate task force
addressing the VPSO Program the result of which was the
comm tnent by former Conmm ssioner Masters to increase the nunber
of VPSGs around the state. He offered his personal inpression
that allowwing VPSOs to carry arns will act as a deterrent [to
crine], decrease the nunber of VPSOs dropping out, and give
VPSCs the neans to be |aw enforcement officers, which he said is
their charge. He thanked the conmittee for its work on the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

8:55:18 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
w shed to testify, closed public testinony on HB 199.

8:55: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 199 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 199 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

8: 55: 45 AM

The conmmttee took an at-ease from8:56 a.m to 9:01 a.m

HB 212-DRI VER S LI CENSI NG EXEMPTI ON: M LI TARY

9:00: 56 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the next order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 212, "An Act relating to an exenption from driver |icensing
requi rements for spouses of nenbers of the arned forces of the
United States."

9:01:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON, as joint prime sponsor, introduced HB
212. He said the proposed |egislation would provide benefit for
service nmenbers. Every year hundreds of [mlitary] service
menbers conme to Alaska and are allowed to use their driver's
licenses from other states, while their spouses are not, and
that is not the case in many other states. He said the proposed
| egi sl ation does not give anybody a free driver's license; the
benefit would be extended only to spouses 18 years of age or
older, who have a legitimate driver's license from another
st ate. In response to the chair, he explained that 18 is the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 18, 2014



age at which Alaska allows a person to possess a driver's
i cense. He said HB 212 sinply gives to the spouse that which
is allowed the service nenber. He offered an exanple of a
mlitary spouse in Fairbanks who was "detained unnecessarily"
and found to be driving wwth a license from another state beyond
90 days. He said the intent of the bill is to show that Al aska
is mlitary-friendly and to recognize the driver's |license
requi renents of other states.

9: 06: 00 AM

CHAIR LYNN opined that HB 212 is a "pretty good bill." He
related that when he served in the mlitary, he and his w fe had
no problens wusing their California driver's licenses in the
various places in which they |ived. He said he had not been

aware, before seeing HB 212, that the sanme is not true in
Al aska.

9: 06: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked if the bill differentiates between a
mlitary spouse who is working versus one who is not working.

9:07: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON i ndicated that the issue is not whether
the spouse of the mlitary nmenber is working, but that he/she
has foll owed hi s/ her spouse to Al aska.

9:09:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS clarified she wants to know if there
currently is a law that soneone who works in Alaska has to
acquire an Alaska driver's license within a certain anount of
time. She offered her understanding that there is, and that the
anount of tine is 30 days. She questioned whether that |aw
woul d conflict with the proposed | egislation.

9:10: 10 AM

NATHAN SOLORIO, Intern, Representative Doug |saacson, Al aska
State Legislature, offered his understanding that irrespective
of enpl oynent status, any driver who noves to Al aska nust obtain
an Al aska driver's license within 90 days; the only exception is
for menbers of the mlitary stationed in Al aska.

9:10: 58 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 18, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES rephrased M. Solorio' s statenent.
9:11: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, line 1, follow ng "spouses":
| nsert "or sane-sex partners"

Page 2, line 1, follow ng "spouse" in both places:
| nsert "or sane-sex partner"

Page 2, line 3:
Del ete "or spouse"

Insert "or the nenber's spouse or sane-sex
partner”
Page 2, line 4, followng "jurisdiction;":

Insert "to claim to an exenption wunder this
paragraph, a nenber's sane-sex partner shall submt an
application for an exenption and, with the application
for exenption, two affidavits, one from the sane-sex
partner and one from the nenber, stating that the
nmenber and the same-sex partner

(A are at least 18 years of age and are
each conpetent to enter into a contract;

(B) have been in an exclusive, commtted,
and intimate relationship with each other for the | ast
12 consecutive nonths and intend to continue that
rel ati onship indefinitely;

(C) have maintained a househol d together at
a common primary residence for the last 12 consecutive
nmonths and intend to nmaintain a household together
i ndefinitely;

(D) consider thenselves to be nenbers of
each other's imediate fam|ly;

(E) are not related to each other to a
degree of closeness that would preclude them from
marryi ng each other in this state if they were of the
opposite sex;

(F) are not legally narried to another

per son;

(G have not executed an affidavit
affirmng sane-sex partner status w th another person
within the last 12 nonths;

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 18, 2014



(H) are each other's sole donestic partner
and each is responsible for the welfare of the other;
and

(1) share financial obligations, including
joint responsibility for basic |iving expenses and
health care costs;"

9:11: 34 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER obj ect ed.
9:11: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS said Anendnent 1 is offered in the
spirit of inclusivity.

9:12: 06 AM
The conmmittee took a brief at-ease at 9:12 a. m
9:12: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS said Anendnent 1 would extend the
benefits that are offered under HB 212 to sane-sex partners. He
said the anmendnent was offered in the previous conmttee of
referral, and he noted that Representative G uenberg was present
in the roomand could speak to the proposed anendnent.

9:13:25 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER spoke to his objection. He said the
proposed amendnent woul d necessitate a change in the bill title.

Further, he opined there is no question that anyone who
considers Amendnent 1 would say it changes the focus of the

bill. He explained he objects to Arendnent 1 because there are
only 90 days in the legislative session and because the proposed
anendnent is "not really germane to the bill." He said he

thinks the word "spouse" is used hundreds of tines in statute,
and he remarked wupon the possibility of "alnpst countless
di scussi on. "

9:14: 26 AM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON stated his objection to Anendnent 1. He
said during the last commttee of referral, the Departnent of

Law (DOL) testified. He offered his understanding that DO.L said
"spouse" is defined in statute, and if that definition is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 18, 2014



changed in statute, it would apply to the use of the word spouse
in HB 212. He opined that Amendnment 1 is trying to change the
scope of HB 212, alnpbst to the point where it would need to be a
constitutional anendnent. He said he would not want to see
those who could benefit from the proposed l|legislation to be
deprived of that benefit while the legislature waits for "lega
wrangling" or "a vote, if that ... cones to it." He said DOL
could conme before the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee to
weigh in on the issue, if the commttee w shes.

9:16: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG Al aska State Legislature, said the
i ssue of sane-sex partners is of concern to a considerable
nunber of people in Alaska and across the country. He said
under current law in Al aska, "spouse" excludes sanme-sex couple
He nentioned an Alaska Civil Liberties Union (ACLU case that
was before the Alaska Suprene Court and another case naned,
Schm dt, and he indicated that the Al aska Suprenme Court decided
in both cases that to deny sanme-sex couples equal protection of
the law is a denial of the Alaska right of equal protection.
Bot h those decisions were based on the Constitution of the State
of Alaska. He said there are a nunber of federal cases "hol ding
simlarly for federal benefits and things that involve federa

rights.” He noted that a recent 9th Crcuit Court of Appeals
case held that the exclusion of honbsexuals on jury panels is a
denial of equal protection of the |[|aw He offered his

understanding that that decision was made in Nevada, and both
t he governor and the attorney general refuse to defend that |aw.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "This is sonething that society
is rapidly changing its views on." He said Amendnent 1 is
carefully crafted so that it does not reach the issue of whether
it is unconstitutional to deny sane-sex couples the right to
marry. He said the proposed anendnment uses |anguage from state
regul ations that were adopted after the ACLU case, which does
not "say they are married," but says "they are entitled to the
benefit of the law ...." He stated, "This anendnent does not go
beyond the scope of the term as used in AS 28.15.021; it would
not make any other changes." He indicated Amendnent 1 does not
seek to open the door to change other |[|aws. He expressed
appreciation to Representative Kreiss-Tonkins for proposing
Amendrent 1, and he surmsed that the entire [Denocratic] Caucus
feels the sanme on the issue. He noted that HB 212 was not
schedul ed to be heard by the House Judiciary Standing Comm tt ee;
therefore, he suggested that if this issue is addressed by
adopting Anendnment 1, the proposed bill would not need another

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 18, 2014



committee of referral to hear it before being heard on the House
fl oor. Representative G uenberg stated he supports HB 212, but
"cannot support the affect, if not the intent, that's
di scrimnatory." He war ned t hat any accept ance of
di scrim nation opens the door to further discrimnation.

9:21:39 AM
CHAIR LYNN opined, "This subject certainly is ... a surprising
issue overall, but issue or not, | don't think it's gernane,

really, to who gets a driver's license and who doesn't, which is
the main part of this bill."

9:21:59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER mai nt ai ned his objection to Arendnent 1.
9:22: 03 AM

CHAIR LYNN requested a vote, but upon determning there was
further commttee comment, voided the roll.

9:22:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that the intent
[of Amendment 1] - inplied, if not said - was to "continue the
effort to pull it into Judiciary and continue this discussion by
the mnority." He opined that "that makes it clearly a
political nmove." He restated his objection to Arendnment 1.
9:23:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said that "in the mdst of the court
wrangling" she does not think it is wise to "take this on." She
referred to Representative Keller's previous nention of the word
spouse in statute and of the need to change the bill title that

woul d be brought about under Anmendnent 1. She said this would
be problematic, and she stated her intent to vote "no" on
Amendnent 1.

9:23:47 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Kreiss-Tonkins voted
in favor of Anendnent 1. Representatives Gattis, Hughes,
| saacson, Keller, and Lynn voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 1 failed by a vote of 1-5.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 18, 2014



9:24:25 AM

AMY ERICKSON, Director, Dvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Departnment of Administration (DOA), stated that the division
woul d have no problem inplenenting [the proposed changes under]

HB 212. Regarding Representative Gattis' question about
acquiring a license if a person is enployed or not enployed, she
ventured the discussion pertains to vehicle registration. She

said a person who is from out of state nust register his/her
vehicle within 60 days, unless the person is enployed, in which
case he/she would have to register the vehicle within 10 days.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS asked if, under HB 212, a mlitary spouse
who gets pulled over by the police would have sonething on
hi s/ her license showing that mlitary spousal status.

CHAIR LYNN renmarked that mlitary spouses have dependent
identification (ID) cards that can be shown with a driver's
license.

M5. ERI CKSON of fered her understanding that "you would provide a
mlitary ID just to show the |aw enforcement officer that you
have reason to not have an Al aska |icense."

9:26: 13 AM

JOMD STEWART, Project Manager, Fairbanks Econom c Devel opnent
Corporation (FEDC), testified in support of HB 212. He said
Fairbanks is a mlitary town and Alaska is a fairly mlitary-
dependent state, and FEDC supports any easing of burden on
mlitary staff and their spouses.

9:27:12 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony on HB 212.

9:27:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 212 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 212 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HB 273- EXTENDI NG COUNCI L ON DOMESTI C VI OLENCE

9:27: 55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 18, 2014



CHAI R LYNN announced the final order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 273, "An Act extending the termnation date of the Counci
on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault; and providing for an
effective date.”

9:28:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LI NDSEY HOLMES, Alaska State Legislature, as
prinme sponsor, presented HB 273. She said the proposed
| egislation would extend the Council on Donestic Violence and
Sexual Assault (CDVSA) for the eight years that were recomended
in the legislative audit. She reviewed that Alaska |eads the
nation in sexual abuse and donestic violence and that CDVSA is
the entity that is charged with addressing this problem She
said the council was created in 1981, and since then has served
Al askans by funding and nonitoring donestic violence and assault
prograns and prevention activities. She related that the
council not only provides training, outreach, and statew de
public information progranms, but it also acts as the state's
grant - maki ng arm and coordi nator for statew de efforts.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES said the statutory mandate is:

To provide for planning and coordination of services
to victinms of donestic violence and sexual assault or
to their famlies and to perpetrators of donestic
vi ol ence and sexual assault, and to provide for crisis
i ntervention and prevention prograns.

9: 29: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES listed the followng primry functions of
CDVSA: to develop, inplenent, mintain, and nonitor donestic
vi ol ence, sexual assault, and crisis intervention and prevention
programs, in coordination with authorities in the field of
donmestic violence and sexual assault; to break down "silos in
this area" and coordinate services between the Departnent of
Public Safety (DPS), the Departnent of Law (DCL), the Depart nent
of Education & Early Devel opnent (DEED), Department of Health
and Soci al Services (DHSS), the Departnent of Corrections (DOC)

and ot her agencies; to oversee, nonitor, coordinate and dispense
funds for existing and expanding services and prograns to neet
donmestic violence and sexual assault wvictins; to provide
techni cal assistance to progranms around the state; to consult
with public enployers and other agencies that are required to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 18, 2014



provi de continuing education progranms; and to consult with other
agenci es.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES said there has been nuch discussion over
the years regarding the role of the council. In 2006, the
| egislature established a task force, on which she served, which
came up with 26 reconmendations. Sonme of the recommendations
were made into statute. Al but two of the rest, she reported,
were fully addressed by the council. The final t wo
recommendations relate to batterers intervention, and she said
the council has been working diligently to address those. She
said the Division of Legislative Audit had three reconmendations
for the council. The council has conmpletely conplied with two
of them which were to inplement witten procedures to ensure
that public notices are posted in a tinmely manner and to inprove
grant reward and nonitoring policies and procedures. The
council has taken steps to conply with the third recommendati on,
which was to work with DHSS to ensure that people providing
services are "fully up to speed” on how to address the needs of
victinms of donestic violence and sexual assault. She said it is
actually the departnent's responsibility to create those
procedures; the council has nade efforts over the last few
months to fulfill their role in working with the departnent.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES stated that in light of the "m ghty task"
in front of CDVSA and the fact that the council has been very
responsive over the years, she would urge the conmttee to
approve the eight-year sunset extension proposed under HB 273.

9:32:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the council's nenbership includes
someone from DOC, so that that departnment has input regarding
the transition of people comng out of prison and the training
and counsel i ng i nvol ved.

9:33: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES answered yes, in response to one of the
af orenenti oned 26 reconmendati ons, one of the council's seats is
now filled by either the conm ssioner or comm ssioner designee
of DOC.

9:33: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON thanked Representative Holnmes for
bringing HB 273 forward. He said he does not think anyone woul d

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 18, 2014



doubt the need for the council, but he questioned what steps are
being taken to ensure that the noney allotted to CDVSA is being
used for the purposes intended.

9:33: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES responded that there are standards in
pl ace. For exanple, she said fornms have been standardized, and
there is a nmethod by which the content in forns submtted by
grantees is checked for accuracy. She deferred to Lauree
Morton, the executive director of CDVSA for further information.

9:35:52 AM

KRIS CURTIS, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit Division,
Legi slative Affairs Agency, presented a sunset review of CDVSA,
dated May 21, 2013. She said the purpose of any sunset audit is
to determne if a council, or any other entity, is serving the
public's interest, and whether its termnation date should be
ext ended. She said the division's audit report also provides a
summary of the council's organization and function, and a
description of its funding sources. She said the audit
concluded that the council is serving the public's interest by
funding and nonitoring Alaskan donestic violence and sexual
assault progranms and prevention response activities. The audit
also found that the council effectively served as the centra
coordinator for related services throughout the state. She
reported that the Legislative Audit D vision reconmmended the
maxi mum ext ension allowed in statute, which is eight years.

9: 36: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked Ms. Curtis if she foresees any
problens related to a m suse of funds.

M5. CURTIS responded that the audit found that the council has
controls in place, such as the aforenentioned forns; however,
the problem was that the forns were not being used consistently,
which she said is a much easier problem to address. She said
t he cause of the recommendation was staff turnover and a |ack of
procedures. She said she cannot say what the current state is,
since the audit was done in the spring of 2013; however, she
reiterated that the division does consider "that type of
recommendati on much easier to address.”

9: 38: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 18, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked if the council takes steps to ensure
the effective use of the funds given to nonprofit groups.
Further, she asked what amount "is being spent on these prograns
on an annual basis."

9:39: 22 AM

M5. CURTIS directed attention to a schedule on page 16 of the
audit, J[included in the conmttee packet], which shows a
schedul e of funding sources and expenditures. She said it shows
that in fiscal year 2012 (FY 12), the council granted $12.7

mllion in awards. There is an appendix to the report, which
shows who received the noney in the account and how nuch they
recei ved. In general, she reported, the council funded the
fol | owi ng: 20 comunity-based victim service prograns, 6

communi ty-based batterers' intervention progranms, 3 prison-based
batterers' intervention prograns, and 13 other related prograns.
She said the audit found that there was sone inconsistency in
the council's nonitoring files - they did not always have
evidence of followup on sonme of their findings - and that
contributed to the reconmendati on.

9:40: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES indicated that her question stens from
f eedback she has received from her constituents regarding their
concern about the accountability of non-profit organizations
t hat receive state funds.

9:41: 09 AM

LAUREE MORTON, Executive Director, Council on Donestic Violence
and Sexual Assault (CDVSA), reported that over the past year,
there were over 9,330 people who sought assistance from the
funded progranms. She continued as foll ows:

About 75 percent of them was related to donestic
vi ol ence, about 20 percent related to sexual assault,
3 percent to stalking, and about 30 percent to other
violent crime victins.

M5. MORTON said the council receives a federal grant through the
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA), which allows the council to fund
services for victins of other violent crinmes. She said about 68
percent of the people who sought services were adults - of whom
79 percent were wonen and 17 percent were nen - and about 28
percent were children. She indicated that 4 percent of those

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 18, 2014



who applied did not note age or sex. Ms. Morton said the
prograns are generally supported in the respective comunities;
in the past year there were over 3,000 volunteers who donated
over 78,000 hours of service.

M5. MORTON reported that there were 262 intakes into the
counci |l -funded batterers' prograns |ast year and 84 people who
conpl eted the prograns. She said the task force recomrendation
still outstanding has to do with the prograns. She said since
assum ng her executive director role two years ago, the counci

has been diligently working on its batterer's intervention

progr ans. She said current regulations narrowmy define what a
program can | ook Iike. Back when the regulations were first
instituted in the md '90s, there was only one program
avai l able, which was crafted from "the Duluth nodel" from
M nnesot a. Over the years, she said, prograns have been nmade
nmore effective by being custom zed through consideration of
factors including a person's age, lethality, and cultural
affiliation. She explained that the council is in a year-|long

process of revising the regulations and has entered into a
menor andum of agreenment (MOA) with DOC to take that task on, and
the council will be reviewwnng the first draft of regulations at
its meeting the end of this nonth.

9:44:18 AM

M5. MORTON said the council also has a research conponent funded
through the governor's initiative, which |ooks at the statew de
popul ati on. She said the Alaska victimzation survey was
conducted in 2010, and she reported that unfortunately, 58
percent of adult wonen in Al aska have been sexually assaulted,
suffered donestic violence, or both. She said the council plans
to repeat that survey in 2015 and, while it does not expect to
see the "lifetine nunber” to change in five years, it does hope
to see the start of "down-trending"” in the past year.

M5. MORTON said the council has also put together a conposite of
al nost every statistic in the state regarding donestic violence
and sexual assault, which is called "the dashboard." She said
it shows about 36 different items on the dashboard, including
child abuse, elder abuse, how crines are reported, the rates of
reports, how many incidents are accepted for prosecution, and
how many of those are successfully prosecut ed.

M5. MORTON said the council also has an eval uati on of one of the

state's significant prinmary prevention activities, which is
conducted through the school system and called, "The Fourth R ™

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 18, 2014



She explained that added to the first three "Rs," [Reading,
wRiting, and aRithnetic], the fourth "R' is Relationships. She
indicated that the program has been in place for grades seven,
eight, and nine, and has existed for three years. She said the
program has gone through an institutional review board at a
college level and there are intervention schools where the
program is being actively used, as well as a control group of

schools, where it is not being inplenented. The intent is to
have the final result at the end of this sumrer, and the counci
hopes that The Fourth R will show an effect on young people's

ability to enter into respectful and nonviol ent rel ati onshi ps.
9:46: 34 AM

VB. MORTON relayed that the council coordi nates several
activities around state, including: sexual assault response
team training for comunities and the justice system to help
peopl e protect thenselves from re-victimzation. She said it
brings together advocates, health care, and |law enforcenment to
create a seanless system for the victim who cones forward to
report an assault. She said the council also has a federal
program called, "Services Training Oficers and Prosecutors”
(STOP), which uses federal funding to train first responders to
donmestic violence and sexual assault. She said the council has
i npl emented several prevention activities, particularly through
the governor's initiative. One of themis called, Coaching Boys
Into Men, where coaches talk to boys about how to treat their
dating partners and the adult wonen in their lives with respect.
The theory is that coaches are natural |eaders in schools and
can be rol es nodels.

9:48: 26 AM

M5. MORTON, in response to Representative |saacson's previously
stated concern about ineligible groups possibly getting funded,
said the council has a request for proposal (RFP) process, which
is open every two years in a grant cycle. She said any eligible
entity can apply, and there are standards and regul ations, by
whi ch the council judges those applications to determ ne whether

the applicants qualify. The council nakes the awards and then
it is "up to the staff to ensure that they are inplenented
correctly and that the funds are being properly used." She

surm sed Representative |saacson nay have read in the audit
sonmething that was "not a failure in the practical day-to-day
matter of making sure that it was happening,” but "a failure in
correctly ensuring all the paperwork was done.™ She said the
council has instituted ways to ensure that this does not happen

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 18, 2014



anynor e: program coordinators neet on a quarterly basis with a
checklist of everything in the files. She said there is also a
routi ne business practice for on-sight evaluation files, where
they are checked for accuracy and conpl eteness, and she signs
of f on them

9:50:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON concluded that the council is ensuring
and approving eligibility and nonitoring where funds are going
to make certain they are being used properly.

[ M5. MORTON nodded. ]

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked Ms. Mrton to talk about the
success that the council has seen.

9:51:19 AM

M5. MORTON said she thinks the council has noved away from
| ooking at progranms and their outputs to asking questions about
the quality of services provided, such as ascertaining whether
the people in the prograns are safer, know about nore resources,
and are better able to enter into the justice system She said
there is a list of seven outcone neasure questions in the short
term that the council started asking last year to determne if
there are ways to inprove services to victins. She said the
council is also looking for intervention prograns for batterers
as part of the regulation revision - "a way to think through
out cone neasures and performance neasures.” She said she thinks
it is "a little nore than recidivism"” She nentioned "a high
mark to get back into the justice systent and figuring out why
patterns of behavior are actually changing. She ventured there
is nore of a wllingness to acknowl edge problens and tal k about
them and, as comunities, look for ways to stop violence and

sexual assault. She said she started this work in 1984, noved
to Alaska in 1989, where she worked in a crisis center in
Bet hel, Alaska, for five years before noving to Juneau. She

said there is "a distinct difference in the air" where people
are saying they do not want sexual assault or domestic violence
to happen in Al aska any nore.

9:53:24 AM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he interpreted M. Morton's

testinmony as neaning that the very presence of the council and
its perpetual focus on the issues is helping to bring awareness,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 18, 2014



and that awareness is bringing people to a place where they want
to put a stop to [sexual assault and donestic viol ence].

MS. MORTON confirnmed that is correct.
9:53: 55 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES thanked M. Mrton for her work. She

indicated that after hearing the statistics presented by M.
Morton, she thinks Alaska has a long way to go; however, she

said the headway that has been made is encouraging. She said
she thinks drugs and al cohol are key issues, and she asked M.
Morton to talk about how the council is making headway by

addressing them

M5. MORTON said there is a program called, "Sisters,” which
hel ps wonen who enter into progranms who also have substance
abuse issues to coordinate efforts with a local substance abuse
program to give the wonen an opportunity to work toward their

sobriety. It also helps with childcare. She said not every
programin the state is able to provide that source, but it is a
nodel in the state being |ooked at by the council. Anot her
program just started this past year, she related, is a

cooperative agreenent with the Division of Behavioral Health,
wherein victins who conme to the council's progranms and have an
identified mental health need are able to access 10 sessions
with behavioral health staff that have received a specific
anmount of “"trauma-informed <care training." In terms of
prevention, she said one thing she has recently asked staff to
do is to work wth the wvarious prevention coordinators
t hroughout the admnistration that deal wth sexual assault,
donmestic violence, substance abuse, and nental health, suicide
prevention, to identify where there may be conmon concerns in

order to work better together. She expressed her hope that in
t he next couple of nonths, the council w Il produce an agreenent
of overarching strategies in the state and a list of how

i ndi vi dual progranms feed into that.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES enphasized her belief that people are
nmedi cating nental health issues with substance abuse, which then
| eads to donestic violence and sexual abuse. She surm sed that
many assaults are happening when people are under the influence

[of drugs and/or alcohol]. She expressed her hope that the
council wll consider nental health first aid as it noves
forward

9:58: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- February 18, 2014



CHAI R LYNN asked Ms. Morton to restate the percentage of victins
that are nen.

M5. MORTON answered about 17 percent of those in the council's
prograns | ast year were men.

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 273.

9:58: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER t hanked Ms. Morton for her work.

CHAI R LYNN echoed Representative Keller's thanks.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER indicated that as a result of Al aska
becoming firm on the issue of sexual abuse and donestic
vi ol ence, there are nore people in correctional facilities. He

said he has heard from constituents that even though the court
orders counseling, training, and prograns, "nothing s avail abl e,

at least at one of the institutions.” He indicated that letting
perpetrators [who have served their sentences] out of prison
[without having had counseling] would result in repeated

of fenses and an increased problem He asked the council to pay
attention to that. He noted that Deputy Conm ssioner Ron Tayl or
is interested in and has ideas related to this issue.

10: 00: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 273 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 273 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

10: 00: 12 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:00
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- February 18, 2014



